
ANABELLE ISLAND 
 Community Development District 

 
AUGUST 20, 2025 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



Anabelle Island 
Community Development District 

475 West Town Place 
         Suite 114  

St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

August 13, 2025 

Board of Supervisors 
Anabelle Island Community Development District 

Dear Board Members: 

The meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Anabelle Island Community Development 
District will be held on Wednesday, August 20, 2025 at 2:00 p.m. at the Plantation Oaks 
Amenity Center, 845 Oakleaf Plantation Parkway, Orange Park, Florida 32065.   

Following is the agenda for the meeting: 

I. Roll Call

II. Audience Comments (regarding agenda items listed below)

III. Consideration of Minutes of the July 16, 2025 Meeting

IV. Consideration of Resolution 2025-09, Easement Encroachment Policy

V. Discussion of Fence Installed within a CDD Easement
A. Lot 34, 2609 Windsor Lakes Way

B. Lot 35, 2603 Windsor Lakes Way

VI. Consideration of Request to Install Fence Within a CDD Easement
(Lot 145,  2865 Monroe Lakes Terrace)

VII. Ratification of Grants of Permanent Easement
A. Tract 63

B. Tract 84

VIII. Public Hearing Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2026
A. Consideration of Resolution 2025-07, Relating to the Annual Appropriations and

Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2026



B. Consideration of Resolution 2025-08, Imposing Special Assessments and
Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2026

IX. Staff Reports
A. Attorney

B. Engineer
1. Public Facilities Report

2. Discussion of Underdrain Project

C. Manager
1. Discussion of Fiscal Year 2026 Meeting Schedule

2. Goals and Objectives

D. Operations Manager

X. Supervisors Requests

XI. Audience Comments

XII. Ratification of Funding Request No. 26

XIII. Financial Statements as of July 31, 2025

XIV. Check Register

XV. Next Scheduled Meeting – Wednesday September 17, 2025 @ 2:00 p.m.

XVI. Adjournment



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



MINUTES OF MEETING 
ANABELLE ISLAND 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Anabelle Island Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, July 16, 2025, at 2:00 p.m. at Plantation Oaks 

Amenity Center, 845 Oakleaf Plantation Parkway, Orange Park, Florida.  

 

 Present and constituting a quorum: 
 
 

Darren Gowens Chairman 
Sarah Milner Vice Chairperson 

 Rose Bock Assistant Secretary  
 Marcus Martinez Appointed as Assistant Secretary 
  
  
 Also present were: 
 
 
 Marilee Giles District Manager, GMS 
 Chris Loy District Counsel, Kilinski Van Wyk 
 Jay Soriano  GMS  
 David Taylor by phone District Engineer, Live Oak Engineering 
   
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS  Roll Call 

 Ms. Giles called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. Three Board members were in attendance 

constituting a quorum.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS  Audience Comments 

 Ms. Giles opened the public comment period for agenda items only. There being no public 

comments, the next item followed.  

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Organizational Matters 
A. Acceptance of Resignation Letter from Supervisor Summerset 

 Ms. Giles presented a resignation letter from James Summerset.  

  



July 16, 2025 Anabelle Island CDD 

2 

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Ms. Milner, with all in 
favor, Accepting the Resignation of James Summerset, was 
approved.  

 

B. Appointment of New Supervisor to Fill Unexpired Term of Office (11/2028) 
Mr. Gowens appointed Marcus Martinez for the unexpired term of office. 

  

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Ms. Milner, with all in 
favor, the Appointment of Marcus Martinez to Fill Unexpired Term 
(11/2028), was approved.  

 

C. Oath of Office for Newly Appointed Supervisor 
 Ms. Giles administered the oath of office to Marcus Martinez. Mr. Loy reviewed the 

Sunshine law, public records law, and ethics law.  

 

D. Election of Officers, Resolution 2025-06 
 Ms. Giles stated this resolution is to add Supervisor Martinez. The Chair position is vacant, 

Derek, Sarah and Rose are all Assistant Secretaries. Darren is currently the Vice Chair. Ms. Giles 

is Secretary and Treasurer. Daniel Laughlin, Jim Oliver, Matt Biagetti and Darrin Mossing are 

Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers. Ms. Giles asked for an appointment of Chair and 

Vice Chair. 

  

On MOTION by Ms. Milner, seconded by Ms. Bock, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2025-06 Appointing Darren Gowens to Chairman 
and Sarah Milner as Vice Chair, was approved 4-0.  

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Minutes of the June 18, 
2025, Meeting 

 Ms. Giles presented the minutes from the June 18, 2025, meeting and asked for any 

comments, corrections, or changes. The Board had no changes to the minutes.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Mr. Martinez, with all in 
favor, the Minutes of the June 18, 2025, Meeting were approved.  

 



July 16, 2025 Anabelle Island CDD 

3 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Work Authorization with 
Live Oak Engineering Inc.  

 Ms. Giles stated the Board directed David to look into the underdrain project plan. This 

authorization has been signed so just looking for a motion to ratify.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Ms. Bock, with all in 
favor, the Work Authorization with Live Oak Engineering, Inc., was 
ratified.  

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Fiscal Year 2026 Approved 
Budget (adoption August 20, 2025)  

 Ms. Giles reminded the Board that they had previously approved the proposed budget at 

the May meeting. She provided an overview of the budget and noted that there is no increase for 

residents. She asked for any comments or questions from the Board.  

 Mr. Loy discussed the easement encroachment policy. Ms. Giles noted letters went out to 

both homeowners. Neither property owner got permission from the HOA. One property owner 

received three violation letters that she installed the fence on a drainage easement. She will follow 

the guidance in the letter that the homeowners need to move their fences. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Staff Reports 
A. Attorney  

Mr. Loy reminded the Board of the four hours of ethics training due by the end of the year. 

 

B. Engineer  
1. Public Facilities Report 
This item was tabled to a future meeting agenda.  

 

2. Discussion of Underdrain Project 
  Mr. Taylor provided an update on the underdrain project. He reviewed the plans provided 

by the other engineer for the underdrain project and had some concerns on the effectiveness of 

those plans. He suggested a third-party environmental consultant look at the underdrain.  

 Mr. Loy asked for approval in substantial form to grant a permanent easement for tract 63 

and 84, the other easement on the other side of the road. The easement area is approximately 500 

sq ft. It was sent to David for his take.  



July 16, 2025 Anabelle Island CDD 

4 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Ms. Milner, with all in 
favor, Both Grant of Permanent Easements in substantial form, was 
approved.  

 

C. Manager  
 Ms. Giles noted all Supervisors completed their Form 1 prior to July 1st.  

 

D. Operations Manager  
Mr. Soriano reviewed the Operations Managers Report.  

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors' Requests 

 Mr. Gowens spoke about personnel changes with KB Homes and provided business cards 

with their customer service number. A service coordinator will follow up on concerns.  

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Audience Comments 

 Darryl Greene – Commended Freddie Oca for his active involvement in the community. 

Questions were raised regarding the replacement of dead trees in the common areas and in front 

of individual homes. Concern was expressed that ULS is installing dead trees in the newly 

developed area. 

 Julie Wagner – Followed up on a broken sprinkler in a common area that was not fixed as 

of Monday night. Mr. Soriano will forward to United, irrigation crew.  

 Mary Beth Praisnir – Questioned the timing of the second lift of asphalt. David is having 

another engineering firm review it to make sure the work is going to actually do what it’s supposed 

to. 

 Mike – Commented on maintenance budget doubling, stop sign broken for 2 months, who 

is responsible for removing garbage from the ponds? A construction barrel has been in the front 

pond at Russell Rd. for six months. Mr. Soriano ordered stop signs. Some signage has been 

repaired. The maintenance budget didn’t double. Lake maintenance cleans the outfall areas of the 

ponds.  

 B.A. Jackson (Lot 34) – Asked why she has to move her fence. A Board member noted the 

HOA only has certain authority to approve a fence such as based on appearance. The CDD owns 



July 16, 2025 Anabelle Island CDD 

5 

and operates the pipe under the ground in the drainage easement. It is an unobstructed drainage 

easement meaning who ever owns that land owns the land but its subject to the Districts rights to 

come in and fix whatever needs to be fixed. Ms. Giles stated the property owner no matter where 

the fence is would maintain that grass.  

 Bob Niles – Received permission from the HOA to put a fence up to the side of his house. 

Has had problems with his home since 2024. Mr. Gowens noted to send it to KB Homes – an email 

address was given.  

 Resident – Asked about a parking policy. Ms. Giles noted that is up to the Board and 

recommended waiting until residents are on the Board.  

 B.A. Jackson – Will Windsor Lakes Way be paved so the man hole covers aren’t so high. 

A Board member stated yes, a top coat but doesn’t have a timeline yet. 

 Lot 34 & 35 property owners were present and discussed submitting documents and 

pictures about drainage easements. Waived the 30 days on the letter. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Ratification of Funding Request No. 25 

 Ms. Giles stated this funding request is for $13,467.43. She asked for a motion to ratify. 

   

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Ms. Bock, with all in 
favor, Funding Request No.25, was ratified.  

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Statements as of June 30, 2025 

 Ms. Giles presented financial statements as of June 30, 2025. 

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Check Register 

 Ms. Giles presented the check register totaling $18,504.22. There were no questions or 

changes.  

   

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Mr. Martinez, with all in 
favor, the Check Register, was approved.  

 

  



July 16, 2025 Anabelle Island CDD 

6 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – Wednesday, 
August 20, 2025 @ 2:00 p.m. 

 Ms. Giles noted the next meeting is scheduled for August 20, 2025, at this location at 2:00 

p.m.  

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Adjournment 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Ms. Milner, with all in 
favor, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 

 

RESOLUTION 2025-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
ANABELLE ISLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
SETTING A HEARING ON RATES AND POLICIES GOVERNING THE 
INSTALLATION OF IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN DISTRICT 
EASEMENTS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Anabelle Island Community Development District (the “District”) is a 
local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as 
amended (the “Act”), for the purpose of owning, operating, maintaining, and providing certain 
infrastructure improvements, including a stormwater management system and drainage 
improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by virtue of certain plats and other legal instruments, the District holds certain 
easement rights and additional easements may in the future be dedicated to the District (together, 
“District Easements”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, construction of unauthorized improvements within District Easements may 
interfere with the proper operation and maintenance of the District’s stormwater management 
system and other maintenance obligations; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District (“Board”) is authorized by the Act to 
adopt rules, orders, rates, fees and charges pursuant to Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board finds that it is in the best interests of the District and necessary for 
the efficient operation of the District to set a public hearing to consider an application fee for the 
installation of improvements within District Easements, attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein by this reference (“Easement Encroachment Fee”). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF ANABELLE ISLAND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. The above stated recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 
 SECTION 2. The Board intends to adopt an Easement Encroachment Fee in connection 
with the adoption of its Policy for Improvements within Anabelle Island Community Development 
District Easements, attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The District will hold a public hearing on such 
Easement Encroachment Fee at a meeting of the Board to be held on __________________, 2025 
at 2:00 p.m. at Plantation Oaks Amenity Center, 845 Oakleaf Plantation Parkway, Orange Park, 
Florida 32065.  
 



 

 

SECTION 3.  The District Secretary is directed to publish notice of the hearing in 
accordance with Section 120.54, Florida Statutes. 
 
 SECTION 4. If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 5. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of August 2025. 
 
 
ATTEST:     ANABELLE ISLAND COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary     Chairperson, Board of Supervisors  
 
 
Exhibit A:  Policy for Improvements within Anabelle Island Community Development District 

Easements 
  



 

 

 
Exhibit A 

 
Policy for Improvements within Anabelle Island Community Development District Easements 

Effective: _________________________ 

1. If a resident desires to install improvements within an Anabelle Island Community Development 
District (“District”) Easement, the resident must: 

a. Submit a written variance request to the District Manager or his or her designee prior to 
commencement of such installation. The request must be made by the owner of the property 
and must contain, at a minimum, the following information: 

i. The contact information of the person making the variance request; 
ii. The lot number or street address of the lot on which the improvement is to be installed; 

iii. A description of the improvement(s) to be installed;  
iv. A diagram showing the proposed location of the improvement(s); and 
v. The requested commencement date of the installation of said improvement(s). 

b. Pay ana non-refundable application fee of $500.00 to offset the cost of processing the variance 
request. Additional fees may be required if external consultants or special reviews are needed 

2. The District Engineer shall review the variance request to determine if the proposed improvement(s) 
would have a negative impact on any District improvements, including the stormwater management 
system. Such review may include, in the District Engineer’s discretion, conducting an in-person site 
inspection. The District Engineer shall recommend one of the following actions: 

a. Approve the variance request, with or without conditions; or 
b. Deny the variance request. 

3. If the District Engineer recommends approving the request, District staff shall coordinate execution of 
a variance agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Attachment A, unless other 
considerations necessitate denying the request, with such revisions as may be deemed necessary and 
approved by District Counsel, in consultation with District staff. The District reserves the right to deny 
any request, even if recommended for approval by the District Engineer, if other considerations warrant 
such denial. Upon execution of the agreement, District staff shall record the agreement in the Official 
Records of Clay County. At the conclusion of the installation of any approved improvements, the 
District Engineer shall conduct a post-installation review to certify that the improvements do not exceed 
the scope of the approval. 

4. If the District Engineer recommends denying the request, District staff shall notify the applicant that 
the variance request was denied and that the proposed improvements may not be installed within the 
District Easement(s).  

5. There shall be no requirement to bring the variance request before the Board of Supervisors for 
approval, unless extraordinary circumstances warrant Board consideration. 

6. The District’s approval of a variance request constitutes approval from the District only. The resident 
is responsible for obtaining any other necessary approvals, permits and authorizations, including but 
not limited to approvals from any homeowners’ association, Clay County, and any other entities having 
an interest in the property, as applicable. 

7. If improvements are constructed within a District Easement without prior approval, including 
improvements that exceed the scope of any prior approval, the District reserves the right to require the 
resident to remove, relocate, or modify the improvement(s) at the resident’s sole expense. If the resident 



 

 

is unresponsive to the District’s requests, the District may remove said improvement(s) on its own and 
charge the resident the cost of said removal. The District also reserves the right to take any appropriate 
legal action to enforce its rights under this policy or to collect any costs due. 

8. If improvements are constructed with approval within a District Easement but at some point, in the 
future, said improvements threaten the health, safety or welfare of residents or District improvements, 
the District will make every reasonable effort to contact the landowner to work to resolve the issues but 
may, in its reasonable discretion, modify or remove the landowner’s improvements immediately to 
protect said interests.  
 

  



 

 

Attachment A 
Form of Variance Agreement 

After recording, please return to: 
Anabelle Island Community Development District 
c/o Governmental Management Services, L.L.C. 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
 
Parcel Identification No.:      
 

VARIANCE AGREEMENT FOR INSTALLATION OF IMPROVEMENTS 
WITHIN ANABELLE ISLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT EASEMENT 

 
 This Variance Agreement for Installation of Improvements within Anabelle Island Community 
Development District Easement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of this _____ day of 
__________________, 20___, by and among ______________ (“Owner”) and the Anabelle Island 
Community Development District (“District”), a local unit of limited special purpose government created 
pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended.   

WITNESSETH: 
 

 WHEREAS, Owner is the owner of Lot ______, as per the plat (“Plat”) of _______, recorded as 
Instrument Number ___________________, of the Public Records of Clay County, Florida (“Property”); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Owner desires to erect certain improvements described 
as____________________________________ (“Improvements”) within a District easement 
(“Easement”) located on Lot ____ (“Easement Area”), as shown on the Plat; and 
 

WHEREAS, due to the District’s legal interests in the Easement, among other reasons, Owner 
requires the District’s consent before constructing improvements within the Easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has agreed to consent to the installation of the Improvements within the 
Easement Area, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, it is understood and agreed as follows: 
 

1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are acknowledged as true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by reference. 

2. Easement for Improvements Installation & Maintenance; Limitation.  Subject to the 
terms of this Agreement, the District hereby grants Owner the right, privilege, and permission to install and 
maintain removable Improvements on the Easement Area.   

3. Owner Responsibilities.  The Owner has the following responsibilities: 



 

 

a. The Owner shall be fully responsible for the installation and maintenance of the 
Improvements. 

b. The Owner shall be responsible for ensuring that the installation and maintenance of the 
Improvements are conducted in compliance with all applicable laws (including but not 
limited to building codes, set back requirements, etc.).   

c. The District, by entering into this Agreement, does not represent or warrant that the District 
has authority to provide all necessary approvals for the installation of the Improvements.  
Instead, the Owner shall be responsible for obtaining any and all applicable permits and 
approvals relating to the work (including but not limited to any approvals of any applicable 
homeowners’ association as well as any other necessary legal interests and approvals).   

d. The Owner shall ensure that the installation and maintenance of the Improvements does not 
damage any property of District or any third party’s property, and, in the event of any such 
damage, the Owner shall immediately repair the damage or compensate the District for such 
repairs, at the District’s option, within thirty (30) days of written notice from the District.   

e. Owner’s exercise of rights hereunder shall not interfere with District’s rights under the 
Easement, and Owner acknowledges that the District's use and maintenance rights shall take 
precedence over Owner's rights granted herein.  For example, if the Improvements include a 
fence, such fence shall be installed within the Easement a few inches higher than ground 
level, so as not to impede the flow of water, or shall otherwise be constructed so as not to 
impede the flow of water.  Further, the Improvements shall be installed in such a manner as 
to not interfere with or damage any culvert pipe that may be located within the Easement, or 
any utilities within the Utility Easement.  It shall be Owner’s responsibility to locate and 
identify any such stormwater improvements and/or utilities.  Further, the Owner shall, at 
Owner's sole expense, engage a licensed and insured professional contractor to locate and 
mark any existing improvements and/or utilities prior to installation of the Improvements and 
shall provide written documentation of such marking to the District prior to beginning any 
work. 

f. Upon completion of the installation, the Improvements will be owned by the Owner.  Owner 
shall be responsible for the maintenance and repair of any such Improvements and agrees to 
maintain the Improvements in good condition.   

g. Additionally, the Owner shall keep the Easement Area free from any materialmen’s or 
mechanic’s liens and claims or notices in respect to such liens and claims, which arise by 
reason of the Owner’s exercise of rights under this Agreement, and the Owner shall 
immediately discharge any such claim or lien. 

 
4. Removal and/or Replacement of Improvements.  The permission granted herein is given 

to Owner as an accommodation and is revocable at any time.  Owner acknowledges the legal interest of the 
District in the Easement(s) described above and agrees never to deny such interest or to interfere in any 
way with District’s use.  Owner will exercise the privilege granted herein at Owner’s own risk and agrees 
that Owner will never claim any damages against District for any injuries or damages suffered on account 
of the exercise of such privilege, regardless of the fault or negligence of the District, to the fullest extent 
permitted by Florida law.  Owner further acknowledges that, without notice, the District may remove all, 
or any portion or portions, of the Improvements installed upon the Easement Area at Owner’s expense, and 
that the District is not obligated to return or re-install the Improvements to their original location and is not 
responsible for any damage to the Improvements, or their supporting structure as a result of the removal.   

 



 

 

5. Indemnification.  Owner agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Clay County, the 
St. Johns River Water Management District, and the District as well as any officers, supervisors, staff, 
agents and representatives, and successors and assigns, of the foregoing, against all liability for damages, 
expenses, attorney's fees, and costs resulting from, arising out of, or in any way connected with, this 
Agreement or the exercise of the privileges granted hereunder, including but not limited to any claims 
related to property damage, personal injury, or death.  

6. Covenants Run with the Land.  This Agreement, and all rights and obligations contained 
herein, shall run with the land and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and 
their respective heirs, successors and assigns, including, but without limitation, all subsequent owners of 
any portions of the property described herein and all persons claiming under them.  Whenever the word 
“Owner” is used herein, it shall be deemed to mean the current owner of the Property and its successors 
and assigns.   

 
7. Sovereign Immunity.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed as a waiver of immunity 

or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability 
which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other 
statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to extend the District's liability beyond the limits 
established in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of 
any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred under the doctrine 
of sovereign immunity or by operation of law. 

 
8. Default.  A default by either party under this Agreement – including but not limited to 

Owner’s failure to meet its obligations under Section 3 above – shall entitle the other to all remedies 
available at law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages and/or specific 
performance.   

 
9. Attorney’s Fees & Costs.  The prevailing party in any litigation to enforce the terms of 

this Agreement shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. 

 
10. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts.  Any party hereto may 

join into this Agreement by executing any one counterpart.  All counterparts when taken together shall 
constitute one agreement. 

 
 

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the day and date 
first above written. 
 
Witnesses: 
 
By:       
 
       
Print Name  
 
 
By:       
 
       
Print Name 

Owner 
 
By:       
      ___________________________ 
 
  
 

   
STATE OF FLORIDA          ) 
COUNTY OF ________________   ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of ▢ physical presence or ▢ online 
notarization this ____ day of __________, 20___, by __________________.  The person ▢	is personally known to 
me or ▢ produced ___________________________ as identification. 
 
 
 

  
NOTARY PUBLIC 

 
 
   
(Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public) 

 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK; SIGNATURES FOLLOW] 



 

 

  
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO VARIANCE AGREEMENT FOR INSTALLATION OF IMPROVEMENTS 

WITHIN ANABELLE ISLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT EASEMENT] 
 

 
 
 
By:       
 
       
Print Name  
 
 
By:       
 
       
Print Name 

ANABELLE ISLAND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
By:       
      __________________________ 
      Chair/Vice Chair, Board of Supervisors 
 
  
 

        
     
 
   
 
STATE OF FLORIDA          ) 
COUNTY OF ________________   ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of ▢ physical presence or ▢ online 
notarization this ____ day of ______________, 20___, by _____________________________, as Chair/Vice Chair 
of the Board of Supervisors of the Anabelle Island Community Development District, on behalf of said district.  The 
person ▢ is personally known to me or ▢ produced ___________________________ as identification. 
 
 

  
NOTARY PUBLIC 

 
 
   
(Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public) 

 
 

[END OF SIGNATURE PAGES]



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 

 

 

• Fence will be almond/tan 
• 2 transition panels on each side will be installed 
• Will have at least 1 – 4ft wide gate 
• SURVEY ON NEXT PAGE – Fence encroaches on an Utility Drainage Easement (UDE)  



 



~ 11' - 6''

~
 6

6'
 -

 0
''

~ 70' - 0''

~
 6

8' - 0
''

~ 11' - 0''

4' vinyl
gate

4' aluminum
gate







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 

















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 

















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



4/30/25
Approved Budget

Community	Development	District

Approved	Budget
FY	2026

Presented by:

Anabelle Island



1-2

3-5

6

7

8 Assessment	Schedule

Narratives

Table	of	Contents

General	Fund

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2022

Amortization	Schedule	Series	2022



Page	1

Adopted	
Budget Actuals	Thru Projected	Next Projected	Thru Approved	

Budget
Description FY	2025 7/31/25 2	Months 9/30/25 FY	2026

REVENUES:

Special	Assessments 245,906$												 246,299$												 -$																													 246,299$												 277,488$												
Developer	Contribution 162,643	 30,747	 92,454	 123,201	 150,832	
Interest	income -	 398	 50	 448	 500	

TOTAL		REVENUES 408,550$								 277,444$								 92,504$												 369,947$								 428,820$								

EXPENDITURES:

Administrative
Supervisors	Fees 6,000$																		 2,000$																		 400$																						 2,400$																		 6,000$																		
FICA	Taxes 454	 153	 31	 184	 454	
Engineering 5,000																					 2,303	 2,500	 4,803	 5,000																					
Attorney 15,000																		 31,457	 3,543	 35,000	 35,000																		
Arbitrage	Rebate 700																									 -	 700	 700	 700																									
Assessment	Roll	Administration 5,618																					 5,618	 -	 5,618	 5,899																					
Dissemination	Agent 3,933																					 3,278	 655	 3,933	 4,129																					
Annual	Audit 5,700																					 5,700	 -	 5,700	 5,800																					
Trustee	Fees 6,500																					 5,116	 -	 5,116	 5,200																					
Management	Fees 53,090																		 44,242	 8,848	 53,090	 55,745																		
Website	Maintenance 1,200																					 1,000	 200	 1,200	 1,260																					
Information	Technology 1,800																					 1,500	 300	 1,800	 1,890																					
Telephone 300																									 74	 226	 300	 300																									
Postage 500																									 178	 200	 378	 500																									
Insurance	General	Liability 6,149																					 4,166	 -	 4,166	 6,729																					
Printing 500																									 206	 295	 500	 500																									
Legal	Advertising 2,500																					 375	 1,500	 1,875	 2,500																					
Other	Current	Charges 700																									 468	 232	 700	 700																									
Office	Supplies 100																									 2	 98	 100	 100																									
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175																									 175	 -	 175	 175																									

TOTAL	ADMINISTRATIVE 115,918$								 108,010$								 19,728$												 127,738$								 138,580$								

Operations	&	Maintenance

Ground	Maintenance

Electric 1,500$																		 2,329$																		 671$																						 3,000$																		 3,000$																		
Reclaimed	Water 23,000																		 10,340	 2,000	 12,340	 18,000																		
Repairs	&	Maintenance 5,000																					 3,709	 1,291	 5,000	 5,000																					
Field	Operations	Management	 -																																 6,250	 1,250	 7,500	 15,000																		
Landscape	-	Contract 118,520															 83,669	 16,734	 100,403	 118,520															
Landscape	-	Contingency 20,000																		 5,321	 4,679	 10,000	 10,000																		
Lake	Maintenance 11,040																		 9,200	 1,840	 11,040	 11,040																		
Irrigation	Repairs 10,000																		 6,827	 3,173	 10,000	 10,000																		

TOTAL	GROUND	MAINTENANCE 189,060$								 127,645$								 31,638$												 159,283$								 190,560$								

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Approved	Budget
General	Fund



Page	2

Adopted	
Budget Actuals	Thru Projected	Next Projected	Thru Approved	

Budget
Description FY	2025 7/31/25 2	Months 9/30/25 FY	2026

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Approved	Budget
General	Fund

Amenity	Center

Insurance 4,571$																		 9,847$																		 -$																													 9,847$																		 11,840$															
Internet 2,000																					 -	 1,500	 1,500	 1,000																					
Electric 16,000																		 7,088	 3,500	 10,588	 9,000																					
Water	&	Sewer/Irrigation 15,000																		 3,097	 800	 3,897	 7,500																					
Refuse	Service 1,000																					 833	 167	 1,000	 2,000																					
Access	Cards 2,500																					 -	 2,500	 2,500	 2,000																					
Janitorial	Maintenance 14,000																		 10,000	 2,000	 12,000	 12,840																		
Janitorial	Supplies 4,000																					 -	 2,000	 2,000	 4,000																					
Pool	Maintenance 15,000																		 12,500	 2,500	 15,000	 16,050																		
Pool	Chemicals 10,000																		 8,341	 1,659	 10,000	 10,700																		
Pool	Permit 500																									 -	 500	 500	 500																									
Facility	Maintenance 7,500																					 4,719	 2,500	 7,219	 7,500																					
Repairs	&	Maintenance 10,000																		 -	 5,000	 5,000	 10,000																		
Special	Events -																																 -	 -	 -	 2,000																					
Holiday	Decorations -																																 -	 -	 -	 1,000																					
Office	Supplies 200																									 -	 100	 100	 200																									
ASCAP/BMI	License	Fees 500																									 -	 250	 250	 -																																
Pest	Control 800																									 1,145	 380	 1,525	 1,550																					

TOTAL	AMENITY	CENTER 103,571$								 57,572$												 25,355$												 82,927$												 99,680$												

TOTAL	EXPENDITURES 408,550$								 293,226$								 76,721$												 369,947$								 428,820$								

Other	Sources/(Uses)

Interlocal	Transfer	In/(Out) -$																													 -$																													 -$																													 -$																													 -$																													

TOTAL	OTHER	SOURCES/(USES) -$																													 -$																													 -$																													 -$																													 -$																													

EXCESS	REVENUES	(EXPENDITURES) (0)$																									 (15,783)$										 15,783$												 -$																													 -$																													



Page	3

Represents costs related to theDistrict’s information systems,which include but are not limited to video conferencing services,
cloud	storage	services	and	servers,	security,	accounting	software,	etc.	

Represents the costs associatedwithmonitoringandmaintaining theDistrict’s website created in accordancewith Chapter 189,
Florida Statutes. These services include site performance assessments, security and firewall maintenance, updates, document
uploads,	hosting	and	domain	renewals,	website	backups,	etc.

Chapter 190, The Florida Statutes, allows each Board member to receive $200 per meeting not to exceed $4,800 per year per
supervisor	for	the	time	devoted	to	District	business	and	meetings.		

FICA	Taxes
Represents	the	Employer’s	share	of	Social	Security	and	Medicare	taxes	withheld	from	the	Board	of	Supervisors	checks.

The District will levy a Non-Ad Valorem assessment on all sold and platted parcels within the District in order to pay for the
operating	expenditures	during	the	Fiscal	Year.	The	assessments	will	be	collected	by	the	Clay	County	Tax	Collectors	Office.

Interest
The		District		earns		interest		on		the		monthly		average		collected		balance		for		each		of		their		investment	accounts.

Expenditures	-	Administrative

Supervisors	Fees

Developer	Contribution
The	District	will	collect	from	Developer	for	unplated	lot	of	the	district.

Special	Assessments

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Budget	Narrative

Fiscal	Year	2026

REVENUES

Engineering
The District will be providing general engineering services to the District, e.g., attendance and preparation for monthly board
meetings,	review	invoices,	etc.

Attorney

The District receives Management, Accounting and Administrative services as part of a Management Agreement with
Governmental Management Services, LLC. The budgeted amount for the fiscal year is based on the contracted fees outlined in
Exhibit	"A"	of	the	Management	Agreement.

Annual	Audit
The District is required to conduct an annual audit of its financial records by an Independent Certified Public AccountingFirm
Grau and Associates. The budgeted amount for the fiscal year is based on contracted fees from the previous year engagement
plus	anticipated	increase.

Assessment	Roll	Administration
The District has contracted with Governmental Management Services, LLC for the certification and collection of the District’s
annual maintenance and debt service assessments. Assessments on platted lots are collected by agreement with Clay County
while	unplatted	assessments	maybe	collected	directly	by	District	and/or	by	County	Tax	Collector.

Dissemination	Agent
The District has contracted with GMS, LLC to act as the Dissemination Agent for the District to prepare the Annual Disclosure
Report required by the Security and Exchange Commission in order to comply with Rule 15(c)(2)-12(b)(5), which relates to
additional	reporting	requirements	for	un-rated	bond	issues.

Trustee	Fees
The	District	bonds	will	be	held	and	administered	by	a	US	Bank	Trustee.	This	represents	the	trustee	annual	fee.

Management	Fees

The District’s legal counsel, Kilinski Van Wyk, PLLC will be providing general legal services to the District, i.e. attendance and
preparation	for	monthly	meetings,	review	operating	&	maintenance	contracts,	etc.

Arbitrage	Rebate
The District is required to annually have an arbitrage rebate calculation on the District’s Series Special Assessment Revenue
Bonds.

Website	Maintenance

Telephone

Information	Technology

New	internet	and	Wi-Fi	service	for	Office.

Postage	and	Delivery
Actual postage and/or freight used for District mailings including agenda packages, vendor checks, budgest, audit reports and
other	correspondence.



Page	4

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Budget	Narrative

Fiscal	Year	2026

Electric

Location Meter	# Monthly Annual
2504	Block	island	Prkw 9259178 120$		 				 1,440$		 			
2942	Windsor	Lakes	Way 9259179 95	 1,140	
Contingency 420	

Total 	$ 215	 	$															3,000	

Reclaimed	Water

Location Meter	# Monthly Annual
2719	Windsor	Lake A00052464 80$		 				 960$		 			
2946	Windsor	Lakes	Way A00052466 355	 4,260	
2750	Windsor	Lakes	Way A00052463 120	 1,440	
2997	Monroe	Lakes	Terrace A00059121 150	 1,800	
2523	Block	Island	Parkway A00059123 650	 7,800	
2371	Dallas	Creek	Lane A00061593 100	 1,200	
Contingency 540	

Total 1,455$		 			 18,000$		 			

Repairs	&	Maintenance

Field	Operations	Management

Vendor Description Monthly Annual
GMS,	LLC Management	Fees 1,250$		 				 15,000$		 				

Landscape	-	Contract

Service Monthly	 Annual
Phase	IA 3,013$		 				 	$														36,156	
Phase	IB 4,173	 50,076	
Amenity	Center 1,184	 14,208	
Mulch 18,080	
Total 	$ 8,370	 	$								118,520	

The District is contracted with Governmental Management Services, LLC to provide onsite field management of contracts for
District Services such as landscape and lake maintenance. Services to include weekly site inspections, meetings with
contractors,monitoring of utility accounts, attend Boardmeetings and receive and respond to property owner phone calls and
emails.

Clay	Electric	provides	for	electric	services	for	the	District.		The	cost	of	electric	associated	with	the	folowing	accounts:

Cost of reclaimed irrigation service from Clay County Utility Authority used by the district. The District has the following
meters:

Any	costs	related	to	miscellaneous	repairs	and	maintenance	that	occur	during	the	fiscal	year.	

The District is contracted with a United Land Services (ULSOperating, LLC) to maintain the common areas of the District, tree
removals,	tree	trimmings,	additional	mulching	and	new	projects	and	replacements.

Expenditures	–	Ground	Maintenance

Copies	used	in	the	preparation	of	agenda	packages,	required	mailings,	and	other	special	projects.

Legal	Advertising
The		District		is		required		to		advertise		various		notices		for		monthly		Board		meetings		and		other		public	hearings	in	a	newspaper	
of	general	circulation.

Supplies	used	in	the	preparation	and	binding	of	agenda	packages,	required	mailings,	and	other	special	projects.

Due,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions
The	District	is	required	to	pay	an	annual	fee	to	the	Florida	Department	of	Commerce	for	$175.

Other	Current	Charges
This	includes	monthly	bank	charges	and	any	other	miscellaneous	expenses	that	incur	during	the	year.

Office	Supplies

Printing

Insurance	General	Liability
TheDistrict's General Liability & Public Officials Liability Insurance policy is with a qualified entity that specializes in providing
insurance	coverage	to	governmental	agencies.	The	amount	budgeted	represents	the	estimated	premium.

Expenditures	-	Administrative	(continued)



Page	5

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Budget	Narrative

Fiscal	Year	2026

Landscape	-	Contingency

Lake	Maintenance

Irrigation	Repairs

Expenditures	–	Amenity	Center

Insurance

Internet

Electric

Location Meter	# Monthly Annual
2355	Dallas	Creek	Ln 9259177 720$		 				 8,640$		 			
Contingency 360	

Total 	$															9,000	
Water	&	Sewer/Irrigation

Location Meter	# Monthly Annual
2355	Dallas	Creek	Ln	Amenity	Cntr A00060740 450$		 				 5,400$		 			
2355	Dallas	Creek	Irrigation A00060741 150	 1,800	
Contingency 300	

Total 	$ 600	 	$															7,500	

Refuse	Service

Access	Cards

Janitorial	Maintenance

Janitorial	Supplies

Pool	Maintenance

Pool	Chemicals

Pool	Permit

Facility	Maintenance

Repairs	&	Maintenance

Special	Events

Holiday	Decorations

Office	Supplies

Pest	Control

Represents	estimated	costs	for	the	District	to	host	special	events	for	the	community	through	the	Fiscal	Year.	

Represents	estimated	costs	for	the	District	to	decorate	the	Amenity	center	for	the	holidays.		

Office	supplies	for	the	Amenity	Center.

Estimated	costs	for	Internet	in	the	Amenity	Center.	

Clay	Electric	provides	for	electric	services	for	the	District.		The	cost	of	electric	associated	with	the	folowing	accounts:

Expenditures	–	Ground	Maintenance	(continued)

The	district	has	contracted	with	Harvey	Pest	Management	for	monthly	pest	control	services	amd	termites	services.	

Estimated	cost	to	maintain	the	Amenity	swimming	pools.	

The District will contract with local company to provide chemicals necessary for the maintenance of the Amenity Center
swimming	pool.

Represents	Permit	Fees	paid	to	the	Department	of	Health	for	the	swimming	pool.

Thedistrict has contractedwith GMS LLC for the administration ofmaintenance contracts for swimmingpools, landscapes, and
lakes,	as	well	as	for	reservation	services	for	district	facilities	and	maintenance	of	the	recreation	access	system.

Any	costs	related	to	miscellaneous	repairs	and	maintenance	that	occur	during	the	fiscal	year.	

Estimated	costs	for	irrigation	by	the	district	for	water,	sewer	and	irrigation.		

Estimated	cost	for	refuse	removal	service.	

Entry	cards	are	issued	to	all	CDD	residents	for	facility	access.		

Estimated	costs	for	janitorial	services	for	the	Amenity	Center.

Estimated	costs	for	janitorial	for	janitorial	supplies	for	Amenity	Center.	

The	District	is	under	contract	with	The	Lake	Doctors,	Inc.	for	the	maintenance	of	the	12	ponds	at	the	District.

Estimated	miscellaneous	irrigation	maintenance	and	repair	costs.		

The District's property Insurance policy is with Florida Insurance Alliance, FIA specializes in providing insurance coverage to
governmental agencies. The amount budgeted represents the estimated premium for property insurance related to theAmenity
Center.

Estimated	costs	for	other	landscape	maintenance	incurred	by	the	District.



Page	6

Adopted	
Budget Actuals	Thru Projected	Next Projected	Thru Approved	

Budget
Description FY	2025 7/31/25 2	Months 9/30/25 FY	2026

REVENUES:

Special	Assessments 346,847$		 			 347,337$		 			 -$		 		 347,337$ 			 346,860$		 			
Interest	Earnings 2,000	 13,154	 850	 14,004	 2,000	
Carry	Forward	Surplus (1) 134,265	 137,446	 -	 137,446	 152,928	

TOTAL		REVENUES 483,111$		 		 497,938$		 		 850$		 		 498,788$		 			 501,788$		 		

EXPENDITURES:

Interest	Expense	11/1 107,930$		 			 107,930$		 			 -$		 		 107,930$ 			 106,175$		 			
Interest	Expense	5/1 107,930	 107,930	 -	 107,930	 106,175	
Principal	Expense	5/1 130,000	 130,000	 -	 130,000	 135,000	

TOTAL	EXPENDITURES 345,860$		 		 345,860$		 		 -$		 		 345,860$											 347,350$								

Other	Sources/(Uses)

Interfund	transfer	In/(Out) -$		 		 -$ 		 -$ 		 -$ 	 -$ 			

TOTAL	OTHER	SOURCES/(USES) -$		 		 -$	 		 -$	 		 -$	 	 -$	 			

TOTAL	EXPENDITURES 345,860$		 		 345,860$		 		 -$		 		 345,860$											 347,350$								

EXCESS	REVENUES	(EXPENDITURES) 137,251$		 		 152,078$		 		 850$		 		 152,928$		 			 154,438$		 		

(1) Carry	Forward	is	Net	of	Reserve	Requirement 104,353$		 			

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Approved	Budget
Debt	Service	Series	2022	Special	Assessment	Revenue	Bonds

Interest	Due	11/1/26



Page	7

Period Outstanding	
Balance Coupons Principal Interest Annual	Debt	

Service

11/01/25 5,810,000$		 			 2.700% 106,175$		 			
05/01/26 5,810,000	 2.700% 135,000$		 			 106,175	 347,350$		 			
11/01/26 5,675,000	 2.700% 104,353	
05/01/27 5,675,000	 2.700% 140,000	 104,353	 348,705.00
11/01/27 5,535,000	 2.700% 102,463	
05/01/28 5,535,000	 3.100% 140,000	 102,463	 344,925.00
11/01/28 5,395,000	 3.100% 100,293	
05/01/29 5,395,000	 3.100% 145,000	 100,293	 345,585.00
11/01/29 5,250,000	 3.100% 98,045	
05/01/30 5,250,000	 3.100% 150,000	 98,045	 346,090.00
11/01/30 5,100,000	 3.100% 95,720	
05/01/31 5,100,000	 3.100% 155,000	 95,720	 346,440.00
11/01/31 4,945,000	 3.100% 93,318	
05/01/32 4,945,000	 3.100% 160,000	 93,318	 346,635.00
11/01/32 4,785,000	 3.100% 90,838	
05/01/33 4,785,000	 3.500% 165,000	 90,838	 346,675.00
11/01/33 4,620,000	 3.500% 87,950	
05/01/34 4,620,000	 3.500% 170,000	 87,950	 345,900.00
11/01/34 4,450,000	 3.500% 84,975	
05/01/35 4,450,000	 3.500% 180,000	 84,975	 349,950.00
11/01/35 4,270,000	 3.500% 81,825	
05/01/36 4,270,000	 3.500% 185,000	 81,825	 348,650.00
11/01/36 4,085,000	 3.500% 78,588	
05/01/37 4,085,000	 3.500% 190,000	 78,588	 347,175.00
11/01/37 3,895,000	 3.500% 75,263	
05/01/38 3,895,000	 3.500% 195,000	 75,263	 345,525.00
11/01/38 3,700,000	 3.500% 71,850	
05/01/39 3,700,000	 3.500% 205,000	 71,850	 348,700.00
11/01/39 3,495,000	 3.500% 68,263	
05/01/40 3,495,000	 3.500% 210,000	 68,263	 346,525.00
11/01/40 3,285,000	 3.500% 64,588	
05/01/41 3,285,000	 3.500% 220,000	 64,588	 349,175.00
11/01/41 3,065,000	 3.500% 60,738	
05/01/42 3,065,000	 3.500% 225,000	 60,738	 346,475.00
11/01/42 2,840,000	 3.500% 56,800	
05/01/43 2,840,000	 4.000% 235,000	 56,800	 348,600.00
11/01/43 2,605,000	 4.000% 52,100	
05/01/44 2,605,000	 4.000% 245,000	 52,100	 349,200.00
11/01/44 2,360,000	 4.000% 47,200	
05/01/45 2,360,000	 4.000% 255,000	 47,200	 349,400.00
11/01/45 2,105,000	 4.000% 42,100	
05/01/46 2,105,000	 4.000% 265,000	 42,100	 349,200.00
11/01/46 1,840,000	 4.000% 36,800	
05/01/47 1,840,000	 4.000% 275,000	 36,800	 348,600.00
11/01/47 1,565,000	 4.000% 31,300	
05/01/48 1,565,000	 4.000% 290,000	 31,300	 352,600.00
11/01/48 1,275,000	 4.000% 25,500	
05/01/49 1,275,000	 4.000% 300,000	 25,500	 351,000.00
11/01/49 975,000	 4.000% 19,500	
05/01/50 975,000	 4.000% 310,000	 19,500	 349,000.00
11/01/50 665,000	 4.000% 13,300	
05/01/51 665,000	 4.000% 325,000	 13,300	 351,600.00
11/01/51 340,000	 4.000% 6,800	
05/01/52 340,000	 4.000% 340,000	 6,800	 353,600.00

Total 5,810,000$		 			 3,593,280$		 			 9,403,280$		 			

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

AMORTIZATION	SCHEDULE
Debt	Service	Series	2022	Special	Assessment	Revenue	Bonds



Page	8

Neighborhood O&M	
Units

Bonds	
2022	
Units

FY	2026 FY	2025
Increase/		
(decrease) FY	2026 FY	2025

Increase/		
(decrease)

SF	-	Tax	Roll 369 369 $800.00 $800.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00

Gross	Assessments $295,200.00 $295,200.00 $0.00 $369,000.00 $369,000.00 $0.00

Less:	Discount 4.00% $11,808.00 $11,808.00 $0.00 $14,760.00 $14,760.00 $0.00

Less:	Commission	fees 2.00% $5,904.00 $5,904.00 $0.00 $7,380.00 $7,380.00 $0.00

Direct	Bill	-	Unplatted $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Net	Assessments $277,488.00 $277,488.00 $0.00 $346,860.00 $346,860.00 $0.00

Annual	Maintenance	Assessments Annual	Debt	Assessments

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District
Non-Ad	Valorem	Assessments	Comparison

2025-2026



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



RESOLUTION 2025-07 
 

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE ANABELLE 
ISLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) 
RELATING TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS AND ADOPTING 
THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2025, 
AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2026; AUTHORIZING BUDGET 
AMENDMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has, prior to the fifteenth (15th) day in June 2025, 
submitted to the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Anabelle Island Community Development 
District (“District”) proposed budget (“Proposed Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 
1, 2025 and ending September 30, 2026 (“Fiscal Year 2026”) along with an explanatory and 
complete financial plan for each fund of the District, pursuant to the provisions of Section 
190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at least sixty (60) days prior to the adoption of the Proposed Budget, the 
District filed a copy of the Proposed Budget with the local governing authorities having 
jurisdiction over the area included in the District pursuant to the provisions of Section 
190.008(2)(b), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board set a public hearing thereon and caused notice of such public 
hearing to be given by publication pursuant to Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District Manager posted the Proposed Budget on the District’s website at 
least two days before the public hearing; and  

 
 WHEREAS, Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, requires that, prior to October 1st of 
each year, the Board, by passage of the Annual Appropriation Resolution, shall adopt a budget for 
the ensuing fiscal year and appropriate such sums of money as the Board deems necessary to defray 
all expenditures of the District during the ensuing fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has prepared a Proposed Budget, whereby the budget 
shall project the cash receipts and disbursements anticipated during a given time period, including 
reserves for contingencies for emergency or other unanticipated expenditures during the fiscal 
year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE ANABELLE ISLAND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. BUDGET 
 

a.  The Board has reviewed the Proposed Budget, a copy of which is on file with the 
office of the District Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office, and 
hereby approves certain amendments thereto, as shown in Section 2 below. 

 
b.  The Proposed Budget, attached hereto as Exhibit A, as amended by the Board, is 

hereby adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida 



Statutes (“Adopted Budget”), and incorporated herein by reference; provided, 
however, that the comparative figures contained in the Adopted Budget may be 
subsequently revised as deemed necessary by the District Manager to reflect actual 
revenues and expenditures. 

 
c.  The Adopted Budget, as amended, shall be maintained in the office of the District 

Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office and identified as “The Budget 
for the Anabelle Island Community Development District for the Fiscal Year 
Ending September 30, 2026.” 

 
d. The Adopted Budget shall be posted by the District Manager on the District’s 

official website within thirty (30) days after adoption, and shall remain on the 
website for at least 2 years.   

 
 SECTION 2. APPROPRIATIONS 
 
 There is hereby appropriated out of the revenues of the District, for Fiscal Year 2026, the 
sum of $    to be raised by the levy of assessments and/or otherwise, which sum 
is deemed by the Board to be necessary to defray all expenditures of the District during said budget 
year, to be divided and appropriated in the following fashion: 
 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND    $    
 

DEBT SERVICE FUND (SERIES 2022)  $__________________ 
 
 TOTAL ALL FUNDS     $__________________ 
 
  
 SECTION 3. BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 
 Pursuant to Section 189.016, Florida Statutes, the District at any time within Fiscal Year 
2026 or within 60 days following the end of the Fiscal Year 2026 may amend its Adopted Budget 
for that fiscal year as follows: 
 

a. A line-item appropriation for expenditures within a fund may be decreased or 
increased by motion of the Board recorded in the minutes, and approving the 
expenditure, if the total appropriations of the fund do not increase. 

 
b. The District Manager or Treasurer may approve an expenditure that would increase 

or decrease a line-item appropriation for expenditures within a fund if the total 
appropriations of the fund do not increase and if either (i) the aggregate change in 
the original appropriation item does not exceed the greater of $15,000 or 15% of 
the original appropriation, or (ii) such expenditure is authorized by separate 
disbursement or spending resolution. 

 
c. Any other budget amendments shall be adopted by resolution and consistent with 

Florida law. 
 



 The District Manager or Treasurer must ensure that any amendments to the budget under 
paragraph c. above are posted on the District’s website within 5 days after adoption and remain on 
the website for at least 2 years.   
 

SECTION 4.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
adoption.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 20TH DAY OF AUGUST 2025.  
 
ATTEST:      ANABELLE ISLAND COMMUNITY 

 DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
       By:       
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    
       Its:       
 
 
Exhibit A: Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2026 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



 

RESOLUTION 2025-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE ANABELLE ISLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT MAKING A DETERMINATION OF BENEFIT 
AND IMPOSING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2026; PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION AND 
ENFORCEMENT OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS; 
CERTIFYING AN ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING FOR 
AMENDMENTS TO THE ASSESSMENT ROLL; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Anabelle Island Community Development District (“District”) is a local 
unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the 
purpose of providing, operating and maintaining infrastructure improvements, facilities and 
services to the lands within the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is located in Clay County, Florida (“County”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has constructed or acquired various infrastructure improvements 
and provides certain services in accordance with the District’s adopted capital improvement plan 
and Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the District hereby determines to 
undertake various operations and maintenance and other activities described in the District’s 
budget (“Adopted Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2025, and ending September 
30, 2026 (“Fiscal Year 2026”), attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference herein; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District must obtain sufficient funds to provide for the operation and 
maintenance of the services and facilities provided by the District as described in the Adopted 
Budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of such services, facilities, and operations is a benefit to lands 
within the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, provides that the District may impose special 
assessments on benefitted lands within the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to proceed with the imposition of the 
special assessments for operations and maintenance in the amount set forth in the Adopted Budget; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has previously levied an assessment for debt service, which the 

District desires to collect for Fiscal Year 2026; and 



 

 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 197, Florida Statutes, provides a mechanism pursuant to which such 
special assessments may be placed on the tax roll and collected by the local tax collector 
(“Uniform Method”), and the District has previously authorized the use of the Uniform Method 
by, among other things, entering into agreements with the Property Appraiser and Tax Collector 
of the County for that purpose; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to adopt the Assessment Roll of the 
Anabelle Island Community Development District (“Assessment Roll”) attached to this 
Resolution as Exhibit B and incorporated as a material part of this Resolution by this reference, 
and to certify the Assessment Roll to the County Tax Collector pursuant to the Uniform Method; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to permit the District Manager to 
amend the Assessment Roll, certified to the County Tax Collector by this Resolution, as the 
Property Appraiser updates the property roll for the County, for such time as authorized by Florida 
law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ANABELLE ISLAND 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. BENEFIT & ALLOCATION FINDINGS.  The Board hereby finds and 
determines that the provision of the services, facilities, and operations as described in Exhibit A 
confers a special and peculiar benefit to the lands within the District, which benefit exceeds or 
equals the cost of the assessments. The allocation of the assessments to the specially benefitted 
lands, as shown in Exhibits A and B, is hereby found to be fair and reasonable. 
 
 SECTION 2. ASSESSMENT IMPOSITION.  Pursuant to Chapters 190 and 197, 
Florida Statutes, and using the procedures authorized by Florida law for the levy and collection of 
special assessments, a special assessment for operation and maintenance is hereby imposed and 
levied on benefitted lands within the District, and in accordance with Exhibits A and B.  The lien 
of the special assessments for operations and maintenance imposed and levied by this Resolution 
shall be effective upon passage of this Resolution.  Moreover, pursuant to Section 197.3632(4), 
Florida Statutes, the lien amount shall serve as the “maximum rate” authorized by law for 
operation and maintenance assessments. 
 
 SECTION 3. COLLECTION.  The collection of the operation and maintenance special 
assessments and previously levied debt service assessments shall be at the same time and in the 
same manner as County taxes in accordance with the Uniform Method, as indicated on Exhibits 
A and B.  The decision to collect special assessments by any particular method – e.g., on the tax 
roll or by direct bill – does not mean that such method will be used to collect special assessments 
in future years, and the District reserves the right in its sole discretion to select collection methods 
in any given year, regardless of past practices.   
 
 SECTION 4. ASSESSMENT ROLL.  The Assessment Roll, attached to this Resolution 



 

as Exhibit B, is hereby certified to the County Tax Collector and shall be collected by the County 
Tax Collector in the same manner and time as County taxes.  The proceeds therefrom shall be paid 
to the District. 
 
 SECTION 5. ASSESSMENT ROLL AMENDMENT.  The District Manager shall keep 
apprised of all updates made to the County property roll by the Property Appraiser after the date 
of this Resolution and shall amend the Assessment Roll in accordance with any such updates, for 
such time as authorized by Florida law, to the County property roll.  After any amendment of the 
Assessment Roll, the District Manager shall file the updates in the District records. 
 
 SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions 
of this Resolution, or any part thereof. 
 
 SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon the passage 
and adoption of this Resolution by the Board. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 20TH DAY OF AUGUST 2025. 
 
ATTEST:      ANABELLE ISLAND COMMUNITY 
       DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ By: ___________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary    
       Its: ____________________________ 
 
 
Exhibit A:  Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2026 
Exhibit B:  Assessment Roll 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



 

 

  

 

 

PUBLIC FACILITIES REPORT 

 

 

 
PREPARED FOR 

 

 

 

ANABELLE ISLAND 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

 
Located in 

Clay County, Florida 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
PREPARED BY: 

 

 LIVE OAK ENGINEERING, INC. 

8647 BAYPINE ROAD, SUITE 200 

JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA 32256 

(904) 363-8916 

 

July 16, 2025 

 



2 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 
TITLE   PAGE NO. 

 

1. Introduction and District Description  3  

2. Existing Facility Description  3  

 2.1 Roadway Facilities  3  

 2.2 Utility Facilities  4  

 2.3 Stormwater Drainage Collection System Facilities  4  

 2.4 Stormwater Management System Facilities  4  

 2.5 Recreational Facilities  5  

3. Currently Proposed Expansion of Facilities  5  

4. Replacement of Facilities    5  

5. Exhibits                                                                                                                                  6  

 5.1 Florida Statutes Section 189.08  7  

 5.2 Location Map  10  

 5.3 Latest Approved Site Plan  12  

     

 

                                                                                    

                                                                                                

                                                                                                 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

 

PUBLIC FACILITIES REPORT 

 
FOR 

 

ANABELLE ISLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 

 

 
1. Introduction and District Description 

 

This Public Facilities Report has been prepared on behalf of the Anabelle Island 

Community Development District (the “District”) to comply with Section 189.08 of the 

Florida Statutes (see Exhibit 5.1). Section 189.08 requires the District to detail the existing 

facilities owned or operated by the District, and also to detail the construction of any new 

facilities within five years or the replacement of any existing facilities within ten years. 

 

The District is part of 164.13 acre community development district located in Clay County, 

Florida and is a Lake Asbury Master Planned Community (LA MPC). The District is 

located in Sections 39 & 40, Township 5 South, Range 25 East of Clay County, Florida, 

adjacent to the southerly right-of-way line of Sandridge Road, and adjacent to the easterly 

right-of-way line of Russell Road, all of which is west of Sandridge Road (see Exhibit 5.2 

for a Location Map). 

 

Originally approved construction drawings planned for 369 single family dwelling units, 

an amenity center facility, and the corresponding road, utility and drainage facilities (see 

Exhibit 5.3 for the latest approved Site Plan). At the time of the writing of this report, 

Phases One and Phase 2, road, utility and drainage facilities had been constructed. The 

amenity center has been fully constructed and there have been approximately 176 single 

family dwelling lots constructed. 

 

2. Existing Facility Description 

 

2.1 Roadway Facilities 

 

The existing roadway facilities that have been completed to date (in reference to Exhibit 

5.3) are the improvements to Russell Road at the intersection with Block Island Parkway, 

and the entirety of the following: Dallas Creek Lane, Rocky Mount Lane, Clayton Falls 

Cove, Monroe Lakes Terrace, Eden Oaks Cove, Granite Falls Lane, Windsor Lakes Way, 

Laurel Falls Drive, Black Mountain Way, and Drexel Creek Cove.  

 

Block Island Parkway is dedicated to Clay County for ownership and maintenance. The 

remaining roadway facilities have been dedicated to the District for ownership and 

maintenance. 

 

 



4 
 

 

2.2 Utility Facilities 

 

The water, wastewater and electrical transmission facilities corresponding with the 

roadway facilities listed above have also been constructed for Phase 1 & 2. 

These utility facilities were dedicated to CCUA (Clay County Utility Authority) for 

ownership and maintenance after construction was completed. 

 

2.3 Stormwater Drainage Collection System Facilities 

 

The stormwater drainage collection system facility has been constructed in accordance with 

the approved construction plans within the roadway limits described in section 2.1. This 

stormwater drainage collection system facility consists of drainage pipe with diameters 

ranging from 15-inch through 48-inch, box culverts at wetland and creek crossings, curb 

inlets, manholes, catch basins and mitered end sections. 

 

The stormwater drainage collection system facility components are intended to keep 

stormwater off of roadway pavement during and after a storm event have a capacity equal 

to or greater than the five-year storm event. This means that the stormwater drainage 

collection system facility has been designed so that storm water runoff will not back up 

into the roadway for a storm event with at least a five-year intensity. This was in accordance 

with the design standards of Clay County at the time of construction. 

 

The District owns the stormwater drainage collection system facility and is responsible for 

maintenance. 

 

2.4 Stormwater Management System Facilities 

 

The stormwater management system facility has been constructed in accordance with the 

approved construction plans within the roadway and project limits described in section 2.1. 

This stormwater management system facility consists of ponds numbered 1 through 17 

phases 1 & 2 have been constructed (in reference to Exhibit 5.3) with their respective 

control structures, outfall pipes and mitered end sections. 

 

The stormwater management system facility (all ponds listed previously) has a capacity 

equal to or greater than the twenty-five-year, twenty-four-hour storm event. This means 

that the stormwater management system facility has been designed so that storm water 

runoff will not rise to a level higher than 6” below the top of bank of each pond for a storm 

event with at least a twenty-five-year, twenty-four-hour intensity. This was in accordance 

with the design standards of Clay County and the St. Johns River Water Management 

District at the time of construction. 

 

The District owns the stormwater management system facility and is responsible for 

maintenance. 

 

 

 

 



5 
 

2.5 Recreational Facilities 

 

A recreational facility has been constructed and contains a clubhouse, an outdoor 

swimming pool, playscape, multipurpose field and a parking lot. The total acreage of the 

recreational facility is approximately 1.03 acres. The location of the facility is at the main 

entrance to the Development at the intersection of Dallas Creek Lane and Rocky Mount 

Lane. 

 

The recreational facility has been built to full capacity, which was designed for Phase 1 

and Phase 2 only, including 369 single family dwelling units.  

 

The District owns the recreational facility and is responsible for maintenance. 

 

3. Currently Proposed Expansion of Facilities 

 

There are no plans to expand the limits of the district at this time. 

 

4. Replacement of Facilities 

 

There are no current plans for replacement of existing facilities owned by the District in 

the next ten years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6 
 

 

 

 

 

5. EXHIBITS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 5.1 

 

 

FLORIDA STATUTES SECTION 189.08 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



8 
 

The 2025 Florida Statues 

            Title XIII                                                                    Chapter 189    

PLANNING AND                                          UNIFORM SPECIAL DISTRICT                            

DEVELOPMENT                                               ACCOUNTABILITY ACT  

  

189.08 Special district public facilities report.— 

(1) It is declared to be the policy of this state to foster coordination between special 

districts and local general-purpose governments as those local general-purpose 

governments develop comprehensive plans under the Community Planning Act, pursuant 

to part II of chapter 163. 

(2) Each independent special district shall submit to each local general-purpose 

government in which it is located a public facilities report and an annual notice of any 

changes. The public facilities report shall specify the following information: 

(a) A description of existing public facilities owned or operated by the special district, 

and each public facility that is operated by another entity, except a local general-purpose 

government, through a lease or other agreement with the special district. This description 

shall include the current capacity of the facility, the current demands placed upon it, and 

its location. This information shall be required in the initial report and updated every 7 

years at least 12 months before the submission date of the evaluation and appraisal 

notification letter of the appropriate local government required by s. 163.3191. The 

department shall post a schedule on its website, based on the evaluation and appraisal 

notification schedule prepared pursuant to s. 163.3191(5), for use by a special district to 

determine when its public facilities report and updates to that report are due to the local 

general-purpose governments in which the special district is located. 

(b) A description of each public facility the district is building, improving, or 

expanding, or is currently proposing to build, improve, or expand within at least the next 7 

years, including any facilities that the district is assisting another entity, except a local 

general-purpose government, to build, improve, or expand through a lease or other 

agreement with the district. For each public facility identified, the report shall describe how 

the district currently proposes to finance the facility. 

(c) If the special district currently proposes to replace any facilities identified in 

paragraph (a) or paragraph (b) within the next 10 years, the date when such facility will be 

replaced. 

(d) The anticipated time the construction, improvement, or expansion of each facility 

will be completed. 

(e) The anticipated capacity of and demands on each public facility when completed. 

In the case of an improvement or expansion of a public facility, both the existing and 

anticipated capacity must be listed. 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Index&Title_Request=XIII#TitleXIII
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Index&Title_Request=XIII#TitleXIII
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-0199/0189/0189ContentsIndex.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-0199/0189/0189ContentsIndex.html


9 
 

(3) A special district proposing to build, improve, or expand a public facility which 

requires a certificate of need pursuant to chapter 408 shall elect to notify the appropriate 

local general-purpose government of its plans either in its 7-year plan or at the time the 

letter of intent is filed with the Agency for Health Care Administration pursuant to s. 

408.039. 

(4) Those special districts building, improving, or expanding public facilities 

addressed by a development order issued to the developer pursuant to s. 380.06 may use 

the most recent local government report required by s. 380.06(6) and submitted by the 

developer, to the extent the annual report provides the information required by subsection 

(2). 

(5) The facilities report shall be prepared and submitted within 1 year after the 

district’s creation. 

(6) For purposes of the preparation or revision of local government comprehensive 

plans required pursuant to s. 163.3161, a special district public facilities report may be used 

and relied upon by the local general-purpose government or governments within which the 

special district is located. 

(7) Any special district that has completed the construction of its public facilities, 

improvements to its facilities, or its development is not required to submit a public facilities 

report, but must submit the information required by paragraph (2)(a). 

(8) A special district plan of reclamation required pursuant to general law or special 

act, including, but not limited to, a plan prepared pursuant to chapter 298 which complies 

with the requirements of subsection (2), shall satisfy the requirement for a public facilities 

report. A water management and control plan adopted pursuant to s. 190.013, which 

complies with the requirements of subsection (2), satisfies the requirement for a public 

facilities report for the facilities the plan addresses. 

(9) The Reedy Creek Improvement District is not required to provide the public 

facilities report as specified in subsection (2). 

(10) Each deepwater port listed in s. 403.021(9)(b) shall satisfy the requirements of 

subsection (2) by submitting to the appropriate local government a comprehensive master 

plan as required by s. 163.3178(2)(k). All other ports shall submit a public facilities report 

as required in subsection (2). 

History.—s. 20, ch. 89-169; s. 26, ch. 95-280; s. 16, ch. 97-255; s. 17, ch. 99-8; s. 38, 

ch. 2011-139; s. 15, ch. 2012-99; s. 35, ch. 2014-22; s. 9, ch. 2018-158. 

Note.—Former s. 189.415. 

  

 

 

 

 



10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 5.2 

 

LOCATION MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ANABELLE SANDRIDGE
COMMUNITY

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
EXHIBIT 5.2

GENERAL LOCATION

July 11, 2025

730B

16A

315A

315

315B

209

21A

220
220E

220

220A

220A

220A

220 220

220B

739
209

208A 208B

220A

224

224C

224B

17

218

16

21

SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUSSELL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANDRIDGE ROAD



11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 5.3 

 

LATEST APPROVED SITE PLAN 



 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6
 7

 11

 10
 8

 9

17

 16

 15

 14

 13

 12

ANABELLE SANDRIDGE
COMMUNITY

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
EXHIBIT 5.3

LATEST APPROVED
SITE PLAN

July 11, 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANDRIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUSSELL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING DATES 
ANABELLE ISLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 
 

The Board of Supervisors of the Anabelle Island Community Development District will hold their 
regular meetings for Fiscal Year 2025-2026 at 2:00 p.m. at the Plantation Oaks Amenity Center, 
845 Oakleaf Plantation Parkway, Orange Park, Florida 32065 on the third Wednesday of each 
month as follows or otherwise noted:  
 

October 15, 2025 
November 19, 2025 
December 17, 2025 

January 21, 2026 
February 18, 2026 

March 18, 2026 
April 15, 2026 
May 20, 2026 
June 17, 2026 
July 15, 2026 

August 19, 2026 
September 16, 2026 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



 

 

Anabelle Island Community Development District 
 Performance Measures/Standards & 

Annual Reporting Form 
 

October 1, 2025 – September 30, 2026 
 

1. Community Communication and Engagement 
Goal 1.1: Public Meetings Compliance 

Objective: Hold regular Board of Supervisor meetings per year to conduct CDD related 
business and discuss community needs. 
Measurement: Number of public board meetings held annually as evidenced by 
meeting minutes and legal advertisements. 
Standard: A minimum of three board meetings were held during the Fiscal Year. 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
Goal 1.2: Notice of Meetings Compliance 

Objective: Provide public notice of each meeting at least seven days in advance, as 
specified in Section 190.007(1), using at least two communication methods. 
Measurement: Timeliness and method of meeting notices as evidenced by posting to 
CDD website, publishing in local newspaper and via electronic communication. 
Standard: 100% of meetings were advertised with 7 days’ notice per Florida statute by 
at least two methods (i.e., newspaper, CDD website, electronic communications). 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
Goal 1.3: Access to Records Compliance 

Objective: Ensure that meeting minutes and other public records are readily available 
and easily accessible to the public by completing monthly CDD website checks. 
Measurement: Monthly website reviews will be completed to ensure meeting minutes 
and other public records are up to date as evidenced by District Management’s 
records. 
Standard: 100% of monthly website checks were completed by District Management. 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
2. Infrastructure and Facilities Maintenance 
Goal 2.1: Field Management and/or District Management Site Inspections 

Objective: Field Manager and/or District Manager will conduct inspections per District 
Management services agreement to ensure safety and proper functioning of the 
District’s infrastructure. 
Measurement: Field Manager and/or District Manager visits were successfully 
completed per management agreement as evidenced by Field Manager and/or District 
Manager’s reports, notes or other record keeping method. 
Standard: 100% of site visits were successfully completed as described within district 
management services agreement 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 



 

 

3. Financial Transparency and Accountability 
Goal 3.1: Annual Budget Preparation 

Objective: Prepare and approve the annual proposed budget by June 15 and final 
budget was adopted by September 30 each year. 
Measurement: Proposed budget was approved by the Board before June 15 and final 
budget was adopted by September 30 as evidenced by meeting minutes and budget 
documents listed on CDD website and/or within district records.  
Standard: 100% of budget approval & adoption were completed by the statutory 
deadlines and posted to the CDD website. 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
Goal 3.2: Financial Reports 

Objective: Publish to the CDD website the most recent versions of the following 
documents: Annual Audit, current fiscal year budget with any amendments, and most 
recent financials within the latest agenda package.    
Measurement: Annual Audit, previous years’ budgets, and financials are accessible to 
the public as evidenced by corresponding documents on the CDD’s website. 
Standard: CDD website contains 100% of the following information: Most recent 
Annual Audit, most recent adopted/amended fiscal year budget, and most recent 
agenda package with updated financials. 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
Goal 3.3: Annual Financial Audit 

Objective: Conduct an annual independent financial audit per statutory requirements 
and publish the results to the CDD website for public inspection, and transmit to the 
State of Florida. 
Measurement: Timeliness of audit completion and publication as evidenced by 
meeting minutes showing board accepted and annual audit is available on the CDD’s 
website and transmitted to the State of Florida. 
Standard: Audit was completed by an independent auditing firm per statutory 
requirements and results were posted to the CDD website and transmitted to the State 
of Florida. 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
 
 
Chair/Vice Chair: ____________________________   Date: ________________ 
Print Name: _________________________________ 
Anabelle Island Community Development District 
 

 
 

District Manager: ____________________________   Date: ________________ 
Print Name: _________________________________ 
Anabelle Island Community Development District 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Community	Development	District Funding	Request	#	26
July	28,	2025

	 PAYEE
GENERAL		FUND		

FY25

1 Governmental	Management	Services
Inv	#	95	-	June	2025 905.36$																	

2 Kilinski	Van	Wyk,	PPLC
Inv	#	12549	-	General	Counsel	-	June	2025 5,087.18																

3 United	Land	Services
Inv	#	158818		-	Landscape	Maintenance	July	2025 8,367.00																

4 Dunn	&	Associates,	Inc.
Inv	#	2027-1-1	-	Professional	Services	through	July	5,	2025 2,303.40																

5 Egis	Insurance	Advisors	
Inv	#	28604	-	Policy	#100124835	From	10/01/2024	thru	10/1/2025 5,787.00																

TOTAL 22,449.94$											

Please	make	check	payable	to:
Anabelle	Island		CDD
475	W	Town	Place	Suite	114
Saint	Augustine,	FL	32092

Signature:

Signature:

Anabelle	Island

Chairman/Vice	Chairman

Secretary/Asst.	Secretary









Kilinski | Van Wyk PLLC
P.O. Box 6386
Tallahassee, Florida 32314
United States

INVOICE
Invoice # 12549

Date: 07/12/2025
Due On: 08/11/2025

Anabelle Island CDD
475 West Town Place Suite 114
St. Augustine, Florida 32092

Statement of Account

Outstanding Balance New Charges Payments Received Total Amount Outstanding
( $3,729.85 + $5,087.18 ) - ( $0.00 ) = $8,817.03

AICDD-01
Anabelle Island - General Counsel

Type Attorney Date Notes Quantity Rate Total

Service HM 06/01/2025 Analyze email communications
between engineer and Clay County
Utility Authority regarding need for
CDD to grant easement for utilities
outside of right of way.

0.40 $325.00 $130.00

Service CL 06/02/2025 Confer with M. Hotaling re: appraisal
proposal.

0.20 $285.00 $57.00

Service CL 06/04/2025 Confer with M. Hotaling re: appraisal. 0.10 $285.00 $28.50

Service CL 06/05/2025 Review draft agenda letter; Confer
with K. Beach re: the same.

0.10 $285.00 $28.50

Service CL 06/06/2025 Draft memorandum concerning sale
of real property by a district.

0.40 $285.00 $114.00

Service CL 06/09/2025 Confer with Lampe Roy re: appraisal;
Revise meeting minutes from May
meeting to ensure accuracy; Draft
memorandum outlining process to sell
Tract 89.

1.00 $285.00 $285.00

Service CL 06/10/2025 Finalize memorandum outlining 1.60 $285.00 $456.00

Page 1 of 3



process to sell Tract 89.

Service CL 06/11/2025 Confer with K. Beach re: FY26 deficit
funding agreement.

0.10 $285.00 $28.50

Service CL 06/12/2025 Review financing documents related
to relevant portion of stormwater
improvements on Tract 89; Revise
Tract 89 memorandum accordingly.

2.00 $285.00 $570.00

Service CL 06/13/2025 Confer with D. Taylor re: Tract 89
sale; Revise memorandum re: the
same.

1.80 $285.00 $513.00

Service CL 06/13/2025 Search Clay County public records for
supporting development order and
plans; Review Asbury Lake master
plan.

1.20 $285.00 $342.00

Service RVW 06/13/2025 Analyze issues related to sale of
landscape tract.

0.40 $325.00 $130.00

Service HM 06/15/2025 Correspondence with David Taylor
regarding Easement information and
need to include for approval on next
available Board meeting agenda.

0.20 $325.00 $65.00

Service CL 06/16/2025 Confer with D. Taylor re: tract 89 sale;
Revise memo re the same; Confer
with M. Giles re: the same.

1.00 $285.00 $285.00

Service CL 06/17/2025 Review correspondence form resident
concerning status of underdrain
system installation; Confer with M.
Giles re: budget; Draft assessment
resolution; Draft appropriations
resolution; Review proposed FY26
deficit funding agreement for
accuracy.

1.10 $285.00 $313.50

Service JK 06/17/2025 Review Windsor Lakes Way
correspondence and confer with staff
on same

0.20 $325.00 $65.00

Service CL 06/18/2025 Review correspondence re: flooding
issue in District; Confer with T.
Bramwell re: master trust indenture
provision re: sale of property; Prepare
for and attend Board of Supervisor
meeting.

4.50 $285.00 $1,282.50

Expense KB 06/18/2025 Travel: Travel - CL. 54.00 $0.67 $36.18

Service JK 06/24/2025 Review easement; update same;
confer with Taylor

0.30 $325.00 $97.50

Service JK 06/27/2025 Field call on pond construction
matters and easement status; review

0.40 $325.00 $130.00

Invoice # 12549 - 07/12/2025

Page 2 of 3



ROW information; confer re: towing
options

Service JK 06/30/2025 Analyze correspondence from CCUA/
adjacent property owner Hart for
multiple easements and begin review
of same

0.30 $325.00 $97.50

Service LG 06/30/2025 Review and revise materials
necessary for implementation of 2025
legislative changes.

0.10 $325.00 $32.50

Total $5,087.18

Please make all amounts payable to: Kilinski | Van Wyk PLLC

Please pay within 30 days.

Invoice # 12549 - 07/12/2025

Page 3 of 3



Invoice   158818
12276 San Jose Blvd.
Suite 747
Jacksonville, FL 32223

Date PO#

07/02/25

Due Date Terms

8/1/25 Net 30

BILL TO

Anabelle Island CDD Landscape
Maintenance 2024 (JXM)

Property Address

Anabelle Island CDD Landscape
Maintenance 2024 (JXM)
2409 Dallas Crk Ln
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043

Governmental Management
Service
475 WEst Town Place
Suite 114
St. Augustine, FL 32092

Item Amount

Job #152172 - Anabelle Island CDD Landscape Maintenance July 2025 $8,367.00

p (904) 829-9255 | f



plus 3% increase

Thank you for your business.

REMIT PAYMENT TO:
United Land Services
12276 San Jose Blvd Suite 747
Jacksonville FL 32223

Subtotal $8,367.00

Sales Tax $0.00

Total $8,367.00

Credits/Payments ($0.00)

Balance Due $8,367.00

p (904) 829-9255 | f



Page: 1 of 2

Anabelle Island CDD
Attn: Sarah Sweeting
c/o Govermental Management Services, LLC
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St. Augustine, FL 32092

Invoice Number: 2027-1-1
Date: July 15, 2025

Project Number: 2027-1
Payment Terms: Net 30

Remaining $3,500.00
Limit $3,500.00
Total Billings $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Billing Limits Current Prior Total

Phase Subtotal $0.00

Public Facilites Report

Engineer IV 9.75 175.00 $1,706.25
Engineer III 3.25 150.00 $487.50
Administrative Specialist .25 55.00 $13.75

Subtotal 13.25 $2,207.50

Hours Rate Amount

Phase Subtotal $2,207.50

General District Engineer Services
Professional Services

INVOICE
Dunn & Associates, Inc.
2509 7th Ave S
Birmingham, AL 35233

Work this period consists of project discussion with district council, Russell Rd signal discussions and Block Island utility easement 
discussions. Road flooding discussions, site visit, and contractor work discussions.

For Professional Services Rendered Through: July 05, 2025

Anabelle Island CDD



Project 2027-1 Anabelle Island CDD Invoice 2027-1-1

Page: 2 of 2

Invoice Total $2,303.40

Mileage - 58 Miles (Investigating road flooding issues) $40.60
Mileage - 29 Miles (CDD Site Visit) $20.30
Mileage - 50 Miles (CDD meeting attendance) $35.00

Subtotal $95.90

Amount

Phase Subtotal $95.90

Reimbursable Expenses

Reimbursable Expenses Subtotal $95.90

Reimbursable Expenses

Remaining $2,500.00
Limit $2,500.00
Total Billings $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Billing Limits Current Prior Total

Phase Subtotal $0.00

Underdrain and Drainage Review

Professional Services Subtotal $2,207.50



5545F853-091A-487D-94D8-716B323E4FB6EEF7AA1E-B5F3-4159-A235-FAA0E1168B155,787.000.00 5,787.00 5,787.000.00 1 5,787.001.00 5,787.000.00 1 1 5,787.001.00 5,787.000.00
INVOICE

Anabelle Island Community 
Development District
1119
07/17/2025

Kristina Rudez
1 of 1

$ 5,787.00

100124835
Invoice#28604

Customer

Date
Customer 
Service
Page

Payment Information
Invoice Summary
Payment Amount
Payment for:

Thank You

Please detach and return with payment

Acct #

Anabelle Island Community Development District
c/o Government Management Services, LLC
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St. Augustine, FL 32092

Customer: Anabelle Island Community Development District

Invoice Effective Transaction Description Amount

Policy #100124835  10/01/2024-10/01/2025
Florida Insurance Alliance

07/16/2025 Policy change28604
5,787.00Package  - Post Site Visit Additions

Due Date:  7/17/2025

Total

Date

$ 5,787.00

07/17/2025

Thank You

Remit Payment To: Egis Insurance Advisors
P.O. Box 748555  
Atlanta, GA  30374-8555

(321)233-9939

sclimer@egisadvisors.com

FOR PAYMENTS SENT OVERNIGHT: 
Bank of America Lockbox Services, Lockbox 748555, 6000 Feldwood Rd. College Park, GA 30349



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Unaudited	Financial	Reporting
July	31,	2025



	 General	 Debt	Service	 Capital	Project Totals
	 Fund Fund Fund Governmental	Funds

Assets: 	
Cash:
Operating	Account 27,308$																											 -$																																						 -$																																						 27,308$																																													

Investments:
Custody 461																																					 -																																															 -																																															 461																																																							

Series	2022
Reserve		 -																																												 173,408																														 -																																															 173,408																																													
Revenue		 -																																												 152,078																														 -																																															 152,078																																													
Construction -																																												 -																																															 27,649																																	 27,649																																																

Prepaid	Expenses 1,563																																	 -																																															 -																																															 1,563																																																			
Deposits 1,975																																	 -																																															 -																																															 1,975																																																			

Total	Assets 31,306$																								 325,485$																								 27,649$																											 384,440$																																							

Liabilities:
Accounts	Payable 21,345$																											 -$																																						 -$																																						 21,345$																																													

Total	Liabilites 21,345$																								 -$																																					 -$																																					 21,345$																																										

Fund	Balance: 	
Nonspendable:
Prepaid	Items 1,563$																														 -$																																						 -$																																						 1,563$																																																
Deposits 1,975																																	 -																																															 -																																															 1,975																																																			

Restricted	for:
Debt	Service	-	Series	 -																																												 325,485																														 -																																															 325,485																																													
Capital	Project	-	Series	 -																																												 -																																															 27,649																																	 27,649																																																

Unassigned 6,423																																	 -																																															 -																																															 6,423																																																			

Total	Fund	Balances 9,961$																											 325,485$																								 27,649$																											 363,095$																																							

Total		Liabilities	&	Fund	Balance 31,306$																											 325,485$																											 27,649$																														 384,440$																																										

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Combined	Balance	Sheet
July	31,	2025



Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	07/31/25 Thru	07/31/25 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 196,272$														 196,272$														 196,664$														 392$																					
Special	Assessments	-	Direct	Bill 49,634																			 49,634																			 49,634																			 -																															
Developer	Contributions 162,643																 30,747																			 30,747																			 -																															
Interest	Income -																																		 -																																		 398																										 398																							

Total		Revenues 408,550$														 276,653$														 277,444$														 790$																					

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisors	Fees 6,000$																				 5,000$																				 2,000$																				 3,000$																	
FICA	Taxes 454																										 378																										 153																										 225																							
Engineering 5,000																						 4,167																						 2,303																						 1,863																			
Attorney 15,000																			 15,000																			 31,457																			 (16,457)														
Arbitrage	Rebate 700																										 -																																		 -																																		 -																															
Assessment	Roll	Administration 5,618																						 5,618																						 5,618																						 -																															
Dissemination	Agent 3,933																						 3,277																						 3,278																						 (0)																											
Annual	Audit 5,700																						 5,700																						 5,700																						 -																															
Trustee	Fees 6,500																						 6,500																						 5,116																						 1,384																			
Management	Fees 53,090																			 44,242																			 44,242																			 0																													
Website	Maintenance 1,200																						 1,000																						 1,000																						 -																															
Information	Technology 1,800																						 1,500																						 1,500																						 -																															
Telephone 300																										 250																										 74																													 176																							
Postage 500																										 417																										 178																										 238																							
Insurance	General	Liability 6,149																						 6,149																						 4,166																						 1,983																			
Printing 500																										 417																										 206																										 211																							
Legal	Advertising 2,500																						 2,083																						 375																										 1,708																			
Other	Current	Charges 700																										 583																										 468																										 115																							
Office	Supplies 100																										 83																													 2																																 81																										
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175																										 175																										 175																										 -																															

Total	General	&	Administrative 115,918$														 102,539$														 108,010$														 (5,471)$															

Operations	&	Maintenance

Ground	Maintenance	
Electric 1,500$																				 1,500$																				 2,329$																				 (829)$																			
Water	&	Sewer/Irrigation 23,000																			 19,167																			 10,340																			 8,827																			
Repairs	&	Maintenance 5,000																						 4,167																						 3,709																						 458																							
Facility	Management -																																		 -																																		 6,250																						 (6,250)																	
Landscape	-	Contract 118,520																 98,767																			 83,669																			 15,098																
Landscape	-	Contingency 20,000																			 16,667																			 5,321																						 11,346																
Lake	Maintenance 11,040																			 9,200																						 9,200																						 -																															
Irrigation	Repairs 10,000																			 8,333																						 6,827																						 1,506																			

Subtotal	Ground	Maintenance 189,060$														 157,800$														 127,645$														 30,156$														

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

General	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	July	31,	2025



Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	07/31/25 Thru	07/31/25 Variance

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

General	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	July	31,	2025

Amenity	Center
Insurance 4,571$																				 4,571$																				 9,847$																				 (5,276)$															
Internet 2,000																						 1,667																						 -																																		 1,667																			
Electric 16,000																			 13,333																			 7,088																						 6,245																			
Water/Irrigation 15,000																			 12,500																			 3,097																						 9,403																			
Refuse	Service 1,000																						 833																										 833																										 0																													
Access	Cards 2,500																						 2,083																						 -																																		 2,083																			
Janitorial	Maintenance 14,000																			 11,667																			 10,000																			 1,667																			
Janitorial	Supplies 4,000																						 3,333																						 -																																		 3,333																			
Pool	Maintenance 15,000																			 12,500																			 12,500																			 -																															
Pool	Chemicals 10,000																			 8,333																						 8,341																						 (8)																											
Pool	Permit 500																										 417																										 -																																		 417																							
Facility	Maintenance 7,500																						 6,250																						 4,719																						 1,531																			
Repairs	&	Maintenance 10,000																			 8,333																						 -																																		 8,333																			
Office	Supplies 200																										 167																										 -																																		 167																							
ASCAP/BMI	License	Fees 500																										 417																										 -																																		 417																							
Pest	Control 800																										 800																										 1,145																						 (345)																					

Subtotal	Amenity	Center 103,571$														 87,204$																	 57,572$																	 29,633$														

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 292,631$														 245,005$														 185,216$														 59,788$														

Total	Expenditures 408,550$														 347,544$														 293,226$														 54,317$														

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (0)$																												 (70,890)$															 (15,783)$															 (53,527)$												

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance (0)$																												 (70,890)$															 (15,783)$															 (53,527)$												

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																															 25,744$																	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending (0)$																												 9,961$																				



Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll -$																								 20,469$																 170,409$													 760$																						 768$																							 -$																								 4,258$																			 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 196,664$													
Special	Assessments	-	Direct	Bill 24,817																		 -																																	 -																																	 12,409																	 -																																	 -																																	 12,409																		 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 49,634																		
Developer	Contributions -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 17,280																		 13,467																		 -																																	 -																																	 30,747																		
Interest	Income 6																															 13																												 10																												 197																								 3																															 20																												 47																												 62																												 39																												 1																															 -																																	 -																																	 398																									

Total		Revenues 24,823$																 20,481$																 170,419$													 13,366$															 771$																							 20$																										 16,714$																 62$																										 17,319$																 13,469$																 -$																								 -$																								 277,444$													

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisors	Fees 200$																							 200$																							 200$																							 200$																						 200$																							 200$																							 200$																							 200$																							 200$																							 200$																							 -$																								 -$																								 2,000$																			
FICA	Taxes 15																												 15																												 15																												 15																											 15																												 15																												 15																												 15																												 15																												 15																												 -																																	 -																																	 153																									
Engineering -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 2,303																					 -																																	 -																																	 2,303																					
Attorney 4,288																					 4,712																					 1,617																					 2,776																				 4,459																					 1,681																					 1,046																					 2,061																					 3,730																					 5,087																					 -																																	 -																																	 31,457																		
Arbitrage	Rebate -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Assessment	Roll	Administration 5,618																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,618																					
Dissemination	Agent 328																									 328																									 328																									 328																								 328																									 328																									 328																									 328																									 328																									 328																									 -																																	 -																																	 3,278																					
Annual	Audit -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 -																																	 5,700																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,700																					
Trustee	Fees 1,563																					 -																																	 -																																	 1,075																				 -																																	 2,478																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,116																					
Management	Fees 4,424																					 4,424																					 4,424																					 4,424																				 4,424																					 4,424																					 4,424																					 4,424																					 4,424																					 4,424																					 -																																	 -																																	 44,242																		
Website	Maintenance 100																									 100																									 100																									 100																								 100																									 100																									 100																									 100																									 100																									 100																									 -																																	 -																																	 1,000																					
Information	Technology 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																								 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 -																																	 -																																	 1,500																					
Telephone 33																												 2																															 14																												 20																											 1																															 -																																	 -																																	 3																															 -																																	 1																															 -																																	 -																																	 74																												
Postage 23																												 5																															 40																												 2																														 8																															 5																															 4																															 28																												 62																												 2																															 -																																	 -																																	 178																									
Insurance	General	Liability 4,166																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 4,166																					
Printing 18																												 17																												 9																															 10																											 22																												 11																												 18																												 32																												 57																												 12																												 -																																	 -																																	 206																									
Legal	Advertising 170																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 60																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 145																									 -																																	 -																																	 375																									
Other	Current	Charges 28																												 94																												 -																																	 110																								 -																																	 -																																	 55																												 17																												 125																									 39																												 -																																	 -																																	 468																									
Office	Supplies 0																															 0																															 0																															 0																														 0																															 0																															 0																															 0																															 0																															 0																															 -																																	 -																																	 2																															
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 175																									

Total	General	&	Administrative 21,299$																 10,047$																 6,896$																			 9,211$																		 9,708$																			 9,452$																			 12,041$																 7,358$																			 9,191$																			 12,807$																 -$																														 -$																														 108,010$													

Operations	&	Maintenance

Ground	Maintenance	
Electric 698$																							 140$																							 191$																							 209$																						 207$																							 185$																							 168$																							 176$																							 179$																							 175$																							 -$																								 -$																								 2,329$																			
Water	&	Sewer/Irrigation 1,127																					 867																									 1,181																					 1,020																				 572																									 914																									 985																									 1,216																					 1,424																					 1,035																					 -																																	 -																																	 10,340																		
Repairs	&	Maintenance -																																	 -																																	 394																									 98																											 15																												 42																												 2,362																					 38																												 44																												 716																									 -																																	 -																																	 3,709																					
Facility	Management 625																									 625																									 625																									 625																								 625																									 625																									 625																									 625																									 625																									 625																									 -																																	 -																																	 6,250																					
Landscape	-	Contract 8,367																					 8,367																					 8,367																					 8,367																				 8,367																					 8,367																					 8,367																					 8,367																					 8,367																					 8,367																					 -																																	 -																																	 83,669																		
Landscape	-	Contingency 600																									 -																																	 2,021																					 -																																 2,700																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,321																					
Lake	Maintenance 920																									 920																									 920																									 920																								 920																									 920																									 920																									 920																									 920																									 920																									 -																																	 -																																	 9,200																					
Irrigation	Repairs -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 3,108																					 3,719																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 6,827																					

Subtotal	Ground	Maintenance 12,337$																 10,919$																 13,699$																 11,238$															 13,406$																 14,161$																 17,146$																 11,342$																 11,559$																 11,838$																 -$																														 -$																														 127,645$													

Month	to	Month



Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Month	to	Month

Amenity	Center
Insurance 5,981$																			 -$																								 -$																								 -$																							 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 3,866$																			 -$																								 -$																								 9,847$																			
Internet -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Electric 112																									 718																									 710																									 705																								 934																									 852																									 874																									 715																									 762																									 706																									 -																																	 -																																	 7,088																					
Water/Irrigation 314																									 360																									 347																									 323																								 306																									 311																									 281																									 284																									 284																									 287																									 -																																	 -																																	 3,097																					
Refuse	Service 83																												 83																												 83																												 83																											 83																												 83																												 83																												 83																												 83																												 83																												 -																																	 -																																	 833																									
Access	Cards -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Janitorial	Maintenance 1,000																					 1,000																					 1,000																					 1,000																				 1,000																					 1,000																					 1,000																					 1,000																					 1,000																					 1,000																					 -																																	 -																																	 10,000																		
Janitorial	Supplies -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Pool	Maintenance 1,250																					 1,250																					 1,250																					 1,250																				 1,250																					 1,250																					 1,250																					 1,250																					 1,250																					 1,250																					 -																																	 -																																	 12,500																		
Pool	Chemicals 833																									 833																									 833																									 833																								 833																									 833																									 833																									 833																									 833																									 841																									 -																																	 -																																	 8,341																					
Pool	Permit -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Facility	Maintenance 1,743																					 258																									 -																																	 85																											 -																																	 85																												 197																									 120																									 511																									 1,721																					 -																																	 -																																	 4,719																					
Repairs	&	Maintenance -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Office	Supplies -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
ASCAP/BMI	License	Fees -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Pest	Control -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																 190																									 190																									 -																																	 190																									 575																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,145																					

Subtotal	Amenity	Center 11,317$																 4,502$																			 4,224$																			 4,279$																		 4,596$																			 4,604$																			 4,519$																			 4,476$																			 5,299$																			 9,756$																			 -$																														 -$																														 57,572$																

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 23,654$																 15,421$																 17,923$																 15,518$															 18,002$																 18,765$																 21,665$																 15,819$																 16,857$																 21,594$																 -$																														 -$																														 185,216$													

Total	Expenditures 44,952$																 25,468$																 24,819$																 24,729$															 27,711$																 28,217$																 33,706$																 23,177$																 26,048$																 34,401$																 -$																														 -$																														 293,226$													

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (20,130)$														 (4,987)$																	 145,601$													 (11,363)$													 (26,940)$														 (28,197)$														 (16,992)$														 (23,115)$														 (8,729)$																	 (20,932)$														 -$																														 -$																														 (15,783)$														

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance (20,130)$														 (4,987)$																	 145,601$													 (11,363)$													 (26,940)$														 (28,197)$														 (16,992)$														 (23,115)$														 (8,729)$																	 (20,932)$														 -$																														 -$																														 (15,783)$														



Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2022

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	July	31,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	07/31/25 Thru	07/31/25 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 245,340$														 245,340$														 245,831$														 491$																								
Special	Assessments	-	Direct	Bill 101,507																 101,507																 101,507																 -																																		
Interest	Income 2,000																						 2,000																						 13,154																			 11,154																			

Total		Revenues 348,847$														 348,847$														 360,492$														 11,645$																	

Expenditures:

Interest	-	11/1 107,930$														 107,930$														 107,930$														 -$																															
Interest	-	5/1 107,930																 107,930																 107,930																 -																																		
Principal	-	5/1 130,000																 130,000																 130,000																 -																																		

Total	Expenditures 345,860$														 345,860$														 345,860$														 -$																															

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 2,987$																				 2,987$																				 14,632$																	 11,645$																	

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses):

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 2,987$																				 2,987$																				 14,632$																	 11,645$																	

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 134,265$														 310,854$														
	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 137,251$														 325,485$														



Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Statement	of	Revenues	and	Expenditures

Capital	Projects	Fund

For	The	Period	Ending	July	31,	2025
	

Description SE	2022

Revenues

Interest	Income:
Construction 905$																														

	Transfer	In -																																								

Total	Revenues 905$																														

Expenditures

Capital	Outlay 171$																														
Transfer	Out -																																								

Total	Expenditures 171$																														

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 734$																														

Beginning	Fund	Balance 26,914$																							

Ending	Fund	Balance 27,649$																							



Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Long	Term	Debt	Report

Interest	Rate: 2.7%	-	4.0%
Maturity	Date: 5/1/2052
Reserve	Fund	Definition 50%	MADS
Reserve	Fund	Requirement 173,408$													
Reserve	Fund	Balance 173,408																

Bonds	outstanding	-	2/10/2022 6,190,000$														
Less:	May	1,	2023	(Mandatory) (125,000)
Less:	May	1,	2024	(Mandatory) (125,000)
Less:	May	1,	2025	(Mandatory) (130,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding 5,810,000$														

Series	2022,	Special	Assessment	Refunding	Bonds



ANABELLE ISLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Fiscal Year 2025 Assessments Receipts Summary

ASSESSED
 UNITS 

ASSESSED
SERIES 2022 

DEBT ASSESSED
FY25 O&M 
ASSESSED TOTAL ASSESSED

KB HOMES (1) 108          101,506.83          49,634.27           151,141.09 
TOTAL DIRECT INVOICES (1) 108          101,506.83          49,634.27           151,141.09 

ASSESSED REVENUE TAX ROLL 261          245,340.00        196,272.00           441,612.00 

TOTAL ASSESSED 369          346,846.83        245,906.27           592,753.09 

DUE / RECEIVED BALANCE DUE
SERIES 2022 

DEBT RECEIVED
 O&M 

RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED
KB HOMES (1)                 (0.01)          101,506.83          49,634.27           151,141.10 

TOTAL DIRECT RECEIVED                 (0.01)          101,506.83          49,634.27           151,141.10 

TAX ROLL DUE / RECEIVED                       -            245,830.61        196,664.49           442,495.10 

TOTAL DUE / RECEIVED                 (0.01)          347,337.44        246,298.76           593,636.20 

(1) Direct Assessments are due: 50% due 12/1/24 and 25% due 2/1/25 and 5/1/25

SUMMARY OF TAX ROLL RECEIPTS

CLAY COUNTY DISTRIBUTION
DATE 

RECEIVED
SERIES 2022 

DEBT RECEIVED O&M RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED
1 11/7/2024 184.27                147.42              331.69                 
2 11/13/2024 1,881.60             1,505.28           3,386.88              
3 11/26/2024 23,520.00           18,816.00         42,336.00            
4 12/6/2024 109,132.80         87,306.24         196,439.04         
5 12/19/2024 103,878.78         83,103.03         186,981.81         
6 1/27/2025 950.60                760.48              1,711.08              
7 2/6/2025 960.40                768.32              1,728.72              
8 3/8/2025 -                       -                    -                        
9 4/7/2025 4,312.76             3,450.20           7,762.96              

10 5/6/2025 1,009.40             807.52              1,816.92              
11 6/6/2025 -                       -                    -                        

TAX CERTIFICATES 6/17/2025 -                       -                    -                        
-                       -                    
-                       -                    
-                       -                    
-                       -                    
-                       -                    

TOTAL RECEIVED TAX ROLL          245,830.61        196,664.49           442,495.10 

PERCENT COLLECTED 2022 O&M TOTAL
%  COLLECTED DIRECT BILL 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

% COLLECTED TAX ROLL 100.20% 100.20% 100.20%
TOTAL PERCENT COLLECTED 100.14% 100.16% 100.15%



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Fund Date Check	No. Amount

Payroll 7/18/25 500031 184.70$													

Subtotal 184.70$													

General	Fund
7/1/25 268-273 1,017.68$										
7/8/25 274 575.00															
7/23/25 275-278 13,467.43										
7/24/25 279-280 415.90															
7/31/25 281-282 444.90															

Subtotal 15,920.91$								

Total 16,105.61$							

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Check	Run	Summary
July	31,	2025







AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  8/13/25          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 - 07/31/2025 ***       ANABELLE ISLAND - GENERAL FUND

BANK A ANABELLE - GENERAL

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/01/25 00021 6/13/25 23537    202506 320-57200-45400                                     *              135.00
BACKFLOW TEST

BOBS BACKFLOW & PLUMBING SERVICES                                 135.00 000268
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/01/25 00001 6/30/25 89       202504 320-57200-46000                                     *               43.95

DOORKING IM SERVER
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                   43.95 000269

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/01/25 00001 6/18/25 91       202505 320-57200-45400                                     *              375.96

FACILITY MAINTENANCE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                  375.96 000270

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/01/25 00018 2/25/25 19649    202502 320-57200-44500                                     *              190.00

QUARTERLY PEST CONTROL
HARVEY PEST MANAGEMENT LLC                                        190.00 000271

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/01/25 00018 5/09/25 20354    202505 320-57200-44500                                     *              190.00

QUARTERLY PEST CONTROL
HARVEY PEST MANAGEMENT LLC                                        190.00 000272

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/01/25 00009 6/30/25 06302025 202506 310-51300-49000                                     *               82.77

MILEAGE REIMBUSEMENT
ROSE S. BOCK                                                       82.77 000273

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/08/25 00018 6/28/25 21067    202506 320-57200-44500                                     *              575.00

TERNITE TREATMENT
HARVEY PEST MANAGEMENT LLC                                        575.00 000274

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/23/25 00001 7/01/25 88       202507 310-51300-34000                                     *            4,424.17

JUL MANAGEMENT FEES
7/01/25 88       202507 310-51300-35300                                     *              100.00

JUL WEBSITE ADMIN
7/01/25 88       202507 310-51300-35100                                     *              150.00

JUL INFORMATION TECH
7/01/25 88       202507 310-51300-31300                                     *              327.75

JUL DISSEMINATION SVCS
7/01/25 88       202507 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .09

OFFICE SUPPLIES
7/01/25 88       202507 310-51300-42000                                     *                2.07

POSTAGE
7/01/25 88       202507 310-51300-42500                                     *               12.30

COPIES
7/01/25 88       202507 310-51300-41000                                     *                1.40

TELEPHONE
7/01/25 88       202507 320-57200-46210                                     *                8.14

POOL CHEMS-PHOSPAHTE RMVR
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                5,025.92 000275

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

AICD ANABELLE ISLAN OKUZMUK   



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  8/13/25          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 - 07/31/2025 ***       ANABELLE ISLAND - GENERAL FUND

BANK A ANABELLE - GENERAL

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/23/25 00001 7/01/25 90       202507 320-57200-46100                                     *              625.00
JUL CONTRACT ADMIN

7/01/25 90       202507 320-57200-45600                                     *               83.33
JUL TRASH SERVICES

7/01/25 90       202507 320-57200-46300                                     *            1,000.00
JUL JANITORIAL SERVICES

7/01/25 90       202507 320-57200-46200                                     *            1,250.00
JUL POOL MAINTENANCE SVCS

7/01/25 90       202507 320-57200-46210                                     *              833.33
JUL POOL CHEMICALS

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                3,791.66 000276
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/23/25 00011 6/12/25 12329    202505 310-51300-31500                                     *            3,729.85

MAY GENERAL COUNSEL
KILINSKI VAN WYK PLLC                                           3,729.85 000277

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/23/25 00015 7/01/25 287552B  202507 320-57200-44400                                     *              920.00

JUL LAKE MAINTENANCE
THE LAKE DOCTORS                                                  920.00 000278

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/24/25 00001 7/31/25 93       202505 320-57200-46000                                     *               57.95

DOORKING IM SERVER
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                   57.95 000279

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/24/25 00001 7/31/25 94       202506 320-57200-46000                                     *               57.95

DOORKING IM SERVER - JUN
7/31/25 94       202506 320-57200-46000                                     *              300.00

POOL PERMIT#10-60-2449127
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                  357.95 000280

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/31/25 00022 2/21/25 37506    202507 320-57200-46000                                     *              300.00

REPAIRED BROKEN PIPE
CLAY COUNTY MASTER PLUMBING LLC                                   300.00 000281

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/31/25 00003 7/24/25 2025-300 202507 310-51300-48000                                     *              144.90

NOTICE OF MEETING-8/20
CLAY TODAY NEWSPAPER                                              144.90 000282

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                 15,920.91

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               15,920.91

AICD ANABELLE ISLAN OKUZMUK   




















































	08.20.25 Agenda
	III. 	Consideration of Minutes of the July 16, 2025 Meeting
	IV.	Consideration of Resolution 2025-09, Easement Encroachment Policy
	VI. Consideration of Request to Install Fence Within a CDD Easement (Lot 145,  2865 Monroe Lakes Terrace)
	VII. A. Ratification of Grants of Permanent Easement (Tract 63)
	VII. B. Ratification of Grants of Permanent Easement (Tract 84)
	VIII. Public Hearing Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2026 
	A. Consideration of Resolution 2025-07, Relating to the Annual Appropriations and Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2026
	B. Consideration of Resolution 2025-08, Imposing Special Assessments andCertifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2026
	IX. B. 1 Public Facilities Report
	IX. C. 1. Discussion of Fiscal Year 2026 Meeting Schedule
	IX. C. 2. Goals and Objectives
	XII. 	Ratification of Funding Request No. 26
	XIII. Financial Statements as of July 31, 2025
	XIV. Check Register



